TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2016
5:30 P.M.

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE

530 1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER

2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 1
October 18, 2016, Regular Meeting
October 18, 2016, Closed Session

3  APPROVAL OF THE NOVEMBER 15, 2016, AGENDA 9
5:35 4 PuBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON MR. JEFF VIRGINIA 11
PrRoOPOSED ROAD NAMES
5:40 5 PRESENTATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2016 AuDIT Ms. MisTY WATSON 15
5:45 6  REQUEST TO MoDIFY CUSTODIAL SERVICES CONTRACT MR. ROBERT MARSH 129
550 7 TAXMATTERS MR. LARRY WARREN
A. Monthly Collections Report 133
B. Refunds & Releases 135
C. Property Tax Appeal 145
555 8 FINANCE MATTERS Ms. MARGARET PIERCE
A. Proposed Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 151
(JCPC) Budget Amendment
B. Vaya Health (Formerly Smoky Mountain Center) 155
Quarterly Report
C. Proposed Inmate Catastrophic Insurance Contract 159
Renewal
6:00 9 MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS MR. DERON GEOUQUE
A. Proposed Forest Service Lease 163
B. Out-of-State Travel Request — Parks and Recreation 179
C. Property Donation 187
D. December Meeting Schedule 195
E. Proposed Amendment to the County’s Holiday 197
Schedule
F. Announcements 201
6:05 10 PuBLIC COMMENT 202
7:05 11 BREAK 202
7:10 12  CLOSED SESSION 202

Attorney/Client Matters — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3)
7:30 13  ADJOURN



111516 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 2:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

October 18, 2016, Regular Meeting
October 18, 2016, Closed Session



111516 BCC Meeting

MINUTES

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2016

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday,
October 18, 2016, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina.

PRESENT: Jimmy Hodges, Chairman
David Blust, Vice-Chairman
Billy Kennedy, Commissioner
John Welch, Commissioner
Perry Yates, Commissioner
Stacy C. Eggers, 1V, County Attorney
Deron Geouque, County Manager
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board

Chairman Hodges called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M.

Commissioner Yates opened with a prayer and Commissioner Welch led the Pledge of
Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chairman Hodges called for additions and/or corrections to the October 4, 2016, regular meeting
minutes.

Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the October 4, 2016,
regular meeting minutes as presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Chairman Hodges called for additions and/or corrections to the October 18, 2016, agenda.

County Manager Geouque requested to add a Closed Session for Attorney/Client Matters, per
G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and Land Acquisition, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i).

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the
October 18, 2016, agenda as amended.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0



111516 BCC Meeting

PuBLIC HEARINGS

A. Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on Proposed Amendments to the Ordinance
to Regulate Solicitation in Watauga County

A public hearing was held to allow citizen comment on proposed amendments to the Ordinance
to Regulate Solicitation in Watauga County. Changes have been incorporated into the ordinance
addressing the safety and protection of children and animals.

Chairman Hodges called the public hearing to order at 5:32 P.M.

With no public comment, Chairman Hodges closed the public hearing at 5:32 P.M.

[Clerk’s Note: The Chairman opened and closed the next public hearing then returned to this topic for
further discussion and action.]

Sheriff Hagaman stated that 13 permits had been issued since the Ordinance took effect with no
issues. The Sheriff also stated that a packet with helpful information is given to each applicant.

After further discussion, Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to
adopt the Ordinance to Regulate Solicitation in Watauga County as amended.

VOTE: Aye-3(Hodges, Blust, Welch)
Nay-2(Kennedy, Yates)

B. Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on the Proposed Transfer of Property from
the Beaver Dam Fire District to the Cove Creek Fire District
A public hearing was held to allow citizen comment on the proposed transfer of property from
the Beaver Dam Fire District to the Cove Creek Fire District.

Chairman Hodges called the public hearing to order at 5:33 P.M.

Communications and Emergency Services Director, Jeff Virginia, stated that the proposed
changes would enhance response time and was agreeable with both Fire Departments.

With no public comment Chairman Hodges closed the public hearing at 5:35 P.M.

[Clerk’s Note: The Chairman returned to the previous topic prior to further discussion and action on this
topic.]

County Manager Geouque recommended the effective date for the changes be July 1, 2017, for
tax purposes.

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the transfer of
property as requested with the effective date to be July 1, 2017.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0



111516 BCC Meeting

SHERIFF’'S OFFICE _PATROL VEHICLE EQUIPMENT AND INSTALLATION BID
AWARD

Captain Kelly Redmon requested to utilize the North Carolina Sheriff’s Association bid for new
equipment and the installation for six (6) new patrol vehicles. The North Carolina Sheriff’s
Association awarded Dana Safety Supply the bid for equipment and installation. The cost for
accessory equipment and installation per vehicle is slightly less than last year’s amount.
Adequate funds are included in the Fiscal Year 2017 budget to cover the expenditure.

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to award the bid to Dana Safety
Supply for accessory equipment and installation, in the amount of $32,532.72, for six (6)
recently purchased vehicles as presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

EcoNoMIC IMPACT OF A RECREATION CENTER

Dr. Scott St. Clair and Dr. John Whitehead presented information regarding the potential
economic impact if a recreation center was constructed in the County. Dr. St. Clair shared that
the High Country Recreation encourages a multi-generational indoor recreation facility of which
all ages of children in the County would have access. Dr. Whitehead shared data to show
benefits for the community including economic impacts as well as health care savings. Dr.
Whitehead concluded that the benefits would exceed costs. Dr. St. Clair requested to have time
at the FY 2018 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat to share more details. County Manager Geouque
stated that the Parks and Recreation Department currently has options to structure fees that allow
for all children to participate. The presentation was given for information only; therefore, no
action was required.

NCDOT AGREEMENT REGARDING THE REPLACEMENT OF THE BRIDGE
LoCATED AT HIGHWAY 321 AND AHO ROAD

Mr. Joe Furman stated that the Middle Fork Greenway Association was recently made aware of
plans by the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) to replace the bridge
located at Highway 321 and Aho Road. The greenway plans originally called for the trail to go
over the bridge. However, with NCDOT now replacing the bridge, the opportunity exists to
locate the trail under the bridge allowing for a safer and more user friendly crossing. In order for
the trail to go under the bridge, NCDOT would require a forty percent (40%) match. Staff
understands that the Middle Fork Greenway Association is willing to cover this cost and change
orders that may occur with the trail relocation. However, the County would still be required to
be the signatory on the agreement. Currently, the projected match is estimated at $160,000. The
Middle Fork Greenway Association has received $200,000 in funding from the County Tourism
Development Authority (TDA) and the County received $100,000 to be used for the Middle Fork
Greenway.



111516 BCC Meeting

Mr. Furman presented the NCDOT agreement and a formal letter from the Middle Fork
Greenway committing to fund the forty percent (40%) match and change orders that may occur
with the trail relocation. NCDOT is in the bidding process and needs a response quickly so as to
not impact their timetable.

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the contract with the
North Carolina Department of Transportation regarding the bridge replacement located at
Highway 321 and Aho Road and approve the local match and any additional costs to be allocated
by the Middle Fork Greenway Association with $100,000 to be allocated from the State funds
accepted at the October 4, 2016, meeting, and the remainder of the 40% local match to be paid
by the Middle Fork Greenway.
VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

PAVING BID AWARD FOR MEDIC BASE 3

County Manager Geouque presented the following bids for the paving at the new Medic Base 3:

Bidder Amount
Moretz Paving, Inc. $15,000
Tri-County Paving, Inc. $15,056
Shatley Construction/Paving Co., Inc. $19,076

The County Manager stated that the final grade was recently completed by County personnel
leaving the parking lot ready for paving. The opening of the facility is still scheduled for January
1, 2017, and deferring paving could delay the opening of the facility.

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to award the bid to the lowest
responsive bidder, Moretz Paving, Inc., in the amount of $15,000, for paving at Medic Base 3.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

BUDGET AMENDMENTS

Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, reviewed the following budget amendments:

Account # Description Debit Credit
103586-332004 Senior Center Grant $14,503
105550-449900 Senior Center Grant $14,503

The amendment recognized the acceptance of the Senior Center grant funds. The local match is
included in the FY 2017 POA budget.

103980-398121 Transfer from Capital Projects Fund $290,250
105911-470050 Computer/Technology Request $290,250
213991-399101 Fund Balance Appropriation $290,250

219800-498010 Transfer to General Fund $290,250



111516 BCC Meeting

The amendment allocated funds from Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) set aside funds for
projects as requested by the Watauga County School system for technology.

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the budget
amendments as presented by Ms. Pierce.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

A. Property Donation

County Manager Geouque stated that he was contacted by Mr. Richard Promin who wished to
donate property he owns to the County. The property consists of a one acre lot located in Saddle
Hill (221 Blowing Rock) area. The tax value is $52,000 on the lot and the taxes are current.
Staff is unaware of any liens on the property or any property owner’s association dues. Mr.
Promin has spoken with the Blue Ridge Parkway and they indicated there were no funds
available to pay for the necessary requirements to accept the donation. Staff contacted the Blue
Ridge Conservancy who also had no interest in acquiring the property.

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to table consideration of the
donation to allow time to request more information.

County Attorney Eggers stated that it would cost approximately $400-$500 for a title search to
be performed on the property.

A vote was not taken on the above motion; however, after discussion and by consensus, the
Board agreed to table consideration of the donation to allow time to request more information
from the home owner regarding whether a right-of-way to the property exists.

B. Proposed Update to County Management and Sheriff’s Office Records Retention and
Disposition Schedule

County Manager Geouque stated that the Government Records Section of the State Archives of
North Carolina has sent amendments that are now available to the County Management and
Sheriff’s Office records retention schedules. These amendments clarify the retention for 911
calls received as text messages and reflect the legislation governing body-worn cameras for law
enforcement personnel, which went into effect October 1, 2016.

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to adopt the changes to the
County Management and Sheriff’s Office records retention schedules as presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0



111516 BCC Meeting

C. Recommended Contract Awards for Employee Medical, Dental, and Life Insurance

County Manager Geouque presented renewal rates for employee medical, dental, and life
insurance benefits. The renewal rate received from Blue Cross Blue Shield (BCBS) for medical
insurance is a 10.5% increase. The initial increase was 25.9%; however, staff was able to
negotiate a reduction to 14.5%. Analysis of additional claims information was provided along
with additional negotiations which allowed for the further reduction to the proposed 10.5%
increase. County Manager Geouque also recommended the County fund $1,000 into each
employee’s Health Savings Account (HSA) which helps to offset the high deductible insurance
plan. Adequate funds have been budgeted to cover the renewal rates.

Dental and life insurance premiums will remain unchanged due to the current rate locks. The
current providers are Delta Dental and Symetra Financial, respectively.

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve Blue Cross Blue
Shield for the County employee’s medical plan at the 10.5% increase over the current year and
for the County to fund $1,000 into each employee’s Health Savings Account (HSA).

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

D. Boards and Commissions

County Manager Geouque presented the following:

Economic Development Commission

County Manager Geouque stated that there are two vacancies on the Economic Development
Commission (EDC). One is an unfulfilled term expiring June, 2017, and the other is an
unfulfilled term expiring June, 2018. Those seats were occupied by individuals who have moved
from Watauga County. The EDC has fourteen members; nine are appointees, the other five
serve by virtue of their organization, including one Commissioner. All members vote. No
applications have been received.

E. Announcements
County Manager Geouque announced the following:

e Due to the Board of Elections requiring the use of the Board Room the week of
October 31, 2016, for one-stop voting the November 1, 2016, Board of Commissioners
meeting has been cancelled.

e A public hearing is scheduled on Tuesday, November 15, 2016, at 5:30 P.M. to allow
citizen comment on proposed road names in Watauga County.

e The Appalachian State University Master Plan Committee is hosting a presentation by
Duda|Paine (the Durham, NC firm contracted to develop the plan) regarding initial
feedback for the University Master Plan on Thursday, October 20, 2016, from
10:00 A.M. - 1:00 P.M. in the Plemmons Student Union.



111516 BCC Meeting

PuBLIC COMMENT

Mr. David Stapleton shared concerns regarding homeless people loitering in the New River
Heights neighborhood.

CLOSED SESSION

At 6:40 P.M., Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to enter
Closed Session to discuss Land Acquisition, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i).

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commission Welch, moved to resume the open meeting at
7:06 P.M.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

ADJOURN

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Chairman Hodges, moved to adjourn the meeting at
7:06 P.M.

Jimmy Hodges, Chairman

ATTEST: Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board



111516 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 3:

APPROVAL OF THE NOVEMBER 15, 2016, AGENDA




111516 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

10



111516 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 4:

PuUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON PROPOSED ROAD NAMES

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

A public hearing has been scheduled to allow citizen comment on the new private and public
road names as listed in the attached memo. The public hearing is required by N.C.G.S. 153A-
239.1.

Board action is requested to approve the road names as submitted.

11



111516 BCC Meeting

Public Hearing Notice

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners will hold a public hearing on Tuesday,
November 15, 2016, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Boardroom located in the
Watauga County Administration Building at 814 West King Street, Boone, North
Carolina. The purpose of the public hearing is to allow citizen comment on the following
new road names:

names for new roads — River Creek Lane, This Way, Whitewater Run, Chestnut Ridge

Parkway, Eagle Crest Ridge, Patsys Place, Skyridge Way, Spring House Way, Sweet
Meadow Trail, Timberwalk Drive, Twilight Point, White Trail Lane, Misty Maple Trail,
Mossy Branch Lane, Soaring Eagle Lane, South Willow Ridge Lane, Watauga Campus
Way, Butler Lane, Farmer Brown Road, Sams Lane, Strait and Narrow Way,
Ramblestone Terrace, River Rim Trail, Riddles Fork Crossing, Wayne Woodring
Mountain Road, Fernwood, Madisyn Oaks Lane, Rock Water East, Rock Water West,
Spur Cove Lane, Spur Edge, Bubbling Brook Road, Moon Shine Nvno, Old Indian Nvno,
Chappell Farm Road, Gods Country Road, Nit Noi Row, North Chappell Road, Echo
Point Drive, Lylas Way, Mary Ellen Lane, New Horizons Way, and Falcon Trace; and

name changes for existing roads: from Turbo Drive to Archers Crossing and from

Skiview Lane to Skyview Lane. Interested parties are encouraged to attend. For

information or questions, please call (828) 265-8000.

Jimmy Hodges, Chairman
Watauga County Board of Commissioners

12



BALD MOUNTAIN
River Creek Lane

BEAVER DAM
This Way
Whitewater Run

BLOWING ROCK
Chestnut Ridge Parkway*
Eagle Crest Ridge*

Patsys Place

Skyridge Way*

Spring House Way*
Sweet Meadow Trail*
Timberwalk Drive*
Twilight Point*

White Trail Lane*

BLUE RIDGE

Misty Maple Trail*
Mossy Branch Lane*
Soaring Eagle Lane*

BRUSHY FORK
South Willow Ridge Lane*
Watauga Campus Way

COVE CREEK

Butler Lane

Farmer Brown Road
Sams Lane*

Strait and Narrow Way

ELK
Ramblestone Terrace*

LAUREL CREEK
River Rim Trail*

111516 BCC Meeting

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

MEAT CAMP
Riddles Fork Crossing*
Wayne Woodring Mountain Road*

NEW RIVER

Turbo Drive changed to Archers Crossing
Fernwood*

Madisyn Oaks Lane*

Rock Water East*

Rock Water West*

Spur Cove Lane*

Spur Edge*

NORTH FORK
Bubbling Brook Road*
Moon Shine Nvno*
Old Indian Nvno*

SHAWNEEHAW
Chappell Farm Road*
Gods Country Road
Nit Noi Row

North Chappell Road*

STONY FORK

Echo Point Drive
Lylas Way*

Mary Ellen Lane
New Horizons Way

WATAUGA

Falcon Trace*
Change Skiview Lane to Skyview Lane*

*Indicates roads named in a recorded
subdivision

13



111516 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

14



111516 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 5:

PRESENTATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2016 AuDIT
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Ms. Misty Watson will present the Fiscal Year 2016 County audit. The County’s financial position
remains strong due to the direction provided by the Commissioners and through execution of that
direction by County staff. Below are some of the financial highlights:

«+ The total assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by
$126,284,553.

¢+ The County’s unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $21,607,950 at the end of the
year, representing 46.34% of total General Fund expenditures. This is an increase of
$3,415,887 in the unassigned fund balance from the previous year.

+ The collection rate for property taxes was 98.76% which was an increase from last year’s
98.37%. The County is still above the statewide average of 97.57% for entities of similar
populations in 2015.

% Outstanding debt principal decreased by $4,117,361. Total outstanding debt principal at
June 30, 2016 is $43,156,110. Watauga County’s legal debt limit is $672,414,671 so the
County continues to be well below the state limits.

+« Moody’s Investor Services updated their review of the County’s financials and reported the
County is in a strong financial position.

¢+ No material weaknesses were found in our accounting systems or internal controls.
The audit is presented for information only; however, staff is requesting the Board transfer the

$3,415,887 increase in the unassigned fund balance to the Capital Project Fund, OPEB Liability, and
additional capital items as identified. Staff recommends the following distribution of these funds:

Amount Category
$300,000 School CIP
$2,000,000 Recreation/Pool Complex
$250,000 Facilities Maintenance
$250,000 Emergency Communications
$470,887 OPEB Liability
$105,000 Sheriff’s Office Vehicles
$40,000 New HVAC for Old AppalCart Facility

This will continue the process of replenishing the CIP Fund and returning the balance to pre-
recession levels and also provide funds for capital items.

Board action is required to approve the transfer of the $3,415,887 increase in the unassigned fund
balance to the Capital Project Fund for future County projects and the other capital items identified.

15



111516 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Misty D. Watson, CPA, PA

PO Box 2122
Boone, NC 28607

16



111516 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Jimmy Hodges, Chairman

David Blust, Vice Chairman

Billy Kennedy

Deron T. Geouque

Margaret Pierce

Stacy C. Eggers, IV

Amy Shook

Larry Warren

COUNTY OFFICIALS

John Welch

Perry Yates

County Manager

Finance Director

County Attorney

Register of Deeds

Tax Administrator

17



111516 BCC Meeting

Watauga County, North Carolina
Table of Contents
June 30, 2016
Independent Auditor's Report
Management's Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Exhibit A Statement of Net Position
Exhibit B Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements:

Exhibit C Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds and Reconciliation of the Governmental
Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

Exhibit D-1 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds

Exhibit D-2 Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Exhibit E Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget
and Actual - General Fund

Exhibit F Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund

Exhibit G Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position -
Proprietary Fund

Exhibit H Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund
Exhibit | Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds
Exhibit J Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds

Notes to the Financial Statements
Required Supplemental Financial Data:

Schedule 1 Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust -
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Schedule 2 Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust -
Schedule of the Net Pension Liability

Schedule 3 Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust -
Schedule of the Employer Contributions

Schedule 4 Other Postemployment Benefits - Schedule of Funding Progress, Employer
Contributions and Required Notes

Schedule 5 Schedule of County's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) (LGERS)

11

12-13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23-57

58

59

60

61

62
18



Schedule 6
Schedule 7

Schedule 8

Statement
1

10
11
12
13

14

15
16
17-A
17-B

18

111516 BCC Meeting

Watauga County, North Carolina
Table of Contents
June 30, 2016
Schedule of County's Contributions (LGERS)
Schedule of County's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) (RODSPF)
Schedule of County's Contributions (RODSPF)
Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules:
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
General Fund - Budget and Actual

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Budget and Actual:

Federal Equitable Sharing Fund

State Substance Abuse Tax Fund

Emergency Telephone System Fund

Fire District Funds

Occupancy Tax Fund

CDBG - Scattered Site Housing Fund

Capital Projects Fund

Solid Waste Fund

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Pension Trust Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Pension Trust Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds
Other Schedules:

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

Analysis of Current Tax Levy - County-Wide Levy

Secondary Market Disclosures

Ten Largest Taxpayers

Analysis of Current Tax Levy - Fire Districts

64

66-71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

19



Watauga County, North Carolina
Table of Contents
June 30, 2016

Compliance Section:

Reporting on Compliance and Internal Control over Financial Reporting Based
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Government Auditing Standards

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Federal

Program and Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with
Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

OMB

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major State

Program and Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with
Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Summary Schedule of Prior Year's Audit Findings

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

OMB

111516 BCC Meeting

90-91

92-93

94-95

96-97

98

99-101

20



111516 BCC Meeting

FINANCIAL SECTION

21



111516 BCC Meeting

MISTY D. WATSON, CPA, P.A.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
PO BOX 2122
BOONE, NORTH CAROLINA 28607
TELEPHONE (828) 263-1100

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Commissioners
Watauga County, North Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Watauga County, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2016 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Watauga County’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. | did not audit
the financial statements of AppalCART, which represents 88.3 percent, 88.4 percent, and 74.3 percent,
respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented
component units. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been
furnished to us, and my opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for AppalCART is based
solely on the report of the other auditors. | conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller of the United States. Those
standards require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of Watauga County
District U Tourism Development Authority were not audited in accordance with Governmental Auditing
Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, | express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinions.

22



111516 BCC Meeting

Opinions

In my opinion, based upon my audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Watauga County as of June
30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable thereof
and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 10, the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation
Allowance Irrevocable Trust's Schedules of the Changes in the Net Pension (Asset) Liability, Net
Pension (Asset) Liability and Employer Contributions, on page 58 through 60, respectively, the Other
Post Employment Benefits and Schedules of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions on page
61, the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System’s Schedules of the Proportionate Share of
the Net Pension (Asset) Liability and Contributions, on pages 62 through 63, respectively, and the
Register of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund Schedule of the County’s Proportionate Share of Net
Pension Liability (Asset) and Contributions, on pages 64 through 65, respectively, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. | and other auditors have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’'s responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge |
obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. | do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence
to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Watauga County’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund
financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules as well as the accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal and state awards as required by U.S. Office and Management and Budget Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the State Single Audit Implementation Act
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules and the
schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures; including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
by us and other auditors. In my opinion’ based on my audit, the procedures performed as described
above, and the report of other auditors the combining and individual fund financial statements,

23



111516 BCC Meeting

budgetary schedules, other schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, | have also issued my report dated October 7,
2016 on my consideration of the Watauga County’s internal control over financial reporting and on my
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Watauga County’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

MWJ@M

Misty D. Watson, CPA, PA
Boone, NC 28607
October 7, 2016

24



111516 BCC Meeting

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

25



111516 BCC Meeting
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Watauga County
Year Ended June 30, 2016

As management of Watauga County, we offer readers of Watauga County’s financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. We encourage users to read the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information we have furnished in the County's financial statements and
notes which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $136,284,553.

e The County’s total net position increased by $7,918,785 primarily due to an increase in cash assets from revenues
exceeding budget projections and a reduction in outstanding liabilities coupled with operating expenditures below
expected levels.

e The County’s unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $21,607,950 at the end of the year, representing
46.34% of total General Fund expenditures. This is an increase of $3,415,887 in unassigned fund balance over the
previous year.

e Total County debt decreased by $4,117,361 in outstanding principal.

e The Brookshire Underpass Greenway extension project under Hwy 421 was opened.

e The household hazardous waste collection facility was completed to allow for 5-7 more disposal dates.

e Moody's Investors Service reaffirmed the County’'s Aa3 credit rating and stated the County has a very strong
financial position.

e For the second year, the County was able to allocate funds to the Capital Projects Fund as part of the original
budget ordinance denoting a continued rebound from the recession.

e The fiscal year 2014-15 increase in unassigned fund balance of $1,443,552 was appropriated to the Capital Project
Fund for the County’s CIP in addition to the initially budgeted $825,000.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Watauga County’s basic financial statements. The
County’s basic financial statements consist of three components, 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

The basic financial statements present two different views of the County's finances through the use of government-wide
statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental
information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of Watauga County.

Required Components of Annual Financial Report
Figure 1

Management's Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Govemnment-wide Fund Motes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
Summary Detail
4

26



111516 BCC Meeting
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements (Exhibits A and B) in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements.
They provide both short and long-term information about the County’s financial status.

The next statements (Exhibits C through J) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the
individual parts of the County's government. These statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There
are four parts to the fund financial statements: 1) the governmental fund statements, 2) the budgetary comparison statements 3)
the proprietary fund statements and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.

The next sections of the basic financial statements are the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in detail some of
the data contained in those statements. Directly following the notes is the supplemental information. This section first contains
required supplemental information about the County's pension plans and the other postemployment benefits plan, followed by
additional supplemental information. This supplemental information is provided to show details about the County’s individual
funds. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the County’s finances,
similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-
term information about the County’s financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the County’s net position and how the net position has changed. Net position is the
difference between the County’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources and total liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the County’s financial condition.

Government-wide financial statements may be divided into as many as three categories: 1) governmental activities, 2) business-
type activities, and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most of the County's basic services such as public
safety, parks and recreation, and general administration. Property taxes and state and federal grant funds finance most of these
activities. The business-type activities are those that the County charges customers to provide. This includes solid waste
services offered by Watauga County. The final category is the component units. AppalCART is a separate governmental entity,
which operates a transportation authority in Watauga County. Watauga County Board of Commissioners appoints the eight
member governing body. Watauga County provides some financial support and AppalCART is financially accountable to the
County. The Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority (TDA) is a separate governmental entity created to
administer occupancy tax funds collected to promote tourism in the County. The six voting members of the Authority Board are
appointed by the County Board of Commissioners.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the County’s most significant activities. A fund is a grouping of
related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.
Watauga County, like all governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-
compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the County’s budget ordinance. All County
funds can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. Most of the County’s activities are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds
focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available
for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting
which focuses on current financial resources. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed
short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the County’s
programs. The relationship between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.

The County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted
document that incorporates input from the citizens of the County, the management of the County, and the decisions of the Board
about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the County to obtain funds from identified sources to
finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the

27



111516 BCC Meeting
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

County complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the County succeeded in providing the services as planned when
the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using
the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The statement shows three columns: 1) the final
budget as amended by the board, 2) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund,
and 3) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges. To account for the difference
between the budgetary basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the differences in the
reported activities is shown at the end of the budgetary statement.

Proprietary Funds - Watauga County has one proprietary fund, the Solid Waste Fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-like activities in the government-wide financial statements. Watauga County uses
enterprise funds to account for its solid waste operations. This fund is the same as those separate activities shown in the
business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the government.
Watauga County has eight fiduciary funds, two of which are pension trust funds and the other six are agency funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements start on page 23 of this
report.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain required
supplementary information concerning Watauga County's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its
employees and other postemployment benefits. Required supplementary information can be found beginning on page 56 of this
report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Watauga County’s Net Position

Figure 2
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016

Current and other assets $ 35,690,173 $ 39,533,033 $ 4,897,264 $ 5,862,432 $ 40,587,437 $ 45,395,465
Net capital assets 139,527,310 137,566,874 4,658,480 4,593,317 144,185,790 142,160,191
Total assets 175,217,483 177,099,907 9,555,744 10,455,749 184,773,227 $ 187,555,656
Total deferred outflows of resources 729,287 718,757 64,737 60,289 794,024 779,046
Long-term liabilities outstanding 48,274,945 49,333,032 98,309 172,660 48,373,254 49,505,692
Other liabilities 5,604,966 1,834,602 169,425 282,485 5,774,391 2,117,087
Total liabilities 53,879,911 51,167,634 267,734 455,145 54,147,645 51,622,779
Total deferred inflows of resources 2,344,468 394,202 216,948 33,168 2,561,416 427,370

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 92,898,978 94,926,875 4,658,480 4,593,317 97,557,458 99,520,192
Restricted 6,383,437 5,136,888 - - 6,383,437 5,136,888
Unrestricted 20,439,976 26,193,065 4,477,319 5,434,408 24,917,295 31,627,473
Total net position $ 119,722,391  $126,256,828 $ 9,135,799 $ 10,027,725 $ 128,858,190 $ 136,284,553

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial condition. The assets of the
County exceeded liabilities by $136,284,553 at June 30, 2016. The County’s net position increased by a total of $7,918,785 for the
fiscal year. Net position is reported in three categories: Net investment in capital assets of $99,520,192; restricted net position of
$5,136,888; and unrestricted net position of $31,627,473.

28



111516 BCC Meeting
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The net investment in capital assets is defined as the County's investment in County owned capital assets (e.g. land, buildings,
automotive equipment, office and other equipment), less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items.
The County uses these assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding debt, the resources needed to repay that
debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. At June 30, 2016,
the increase in this category of net position correlates to reduced outstanding debt along with increased capital assets.

Another category of net position is restricted net position. This represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used. The County has restricted assets due to statutory requirements for Register of Deeds Automation
Enhancement Funds, Tax Revaluation, and Stabilization by State Statutes. Special revenues collected and unspent account for
the balance of the restricted funds.

The final category of net position is unrestricted net position. This balance may be used to meet the government's ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors. Several particular aspects of the County's financial operations affected the reporting of total
unrestricted net position:

e Higher current cash and cash equivalent assets;
e Reductions in outstanding liabilities from debt principal paid;

e Reduction in restricted net position increases unrestricted net position.

Watauga County Changes in Net Position

Figure 3
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016

Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 1,532,806 $ 1,891,176 $4,346,485  $4,628,031 $ 5,879,291 $ 6,519,207
Operating grants and contributions 4,973,943 5,694,785 113,697 153,795 5,087,640 5,848,580
Capital grants 707,700 1,087,312 - - 707,700 1,087,312
General revenues:
Property taxes 30,935,535 30,972,900 - - 30,935,535 30,972,900
Other taxes 12,260,357 13,445,818 - - 12,260,357 13,445,818
Grant and contributions not restricted to
specific programs 1,961,409 3,278,098 - - 1,961,409 3,278,098
Other 2,034,114 136,602 22,164 23,689 2,056,278 160,291

Total revenues 54,405,864 56,506,691 4,482,346 4,805,515 58,888,210 61,312,206
Expenses
General government 9,442,939 10,139,596 - - 9,442,939 10,139,596
Public safety 12,617,487 12,944,370 - - 12,617,487 12,944,370
Transportation 167,182 209,838 - - 167,182 209,838
Economic & physical development 521,052 664,986 - - 521,052 664,986
Environment protection 355,573 331,923 - - 355,573 331,923
Humans services 7,536,917 7,735,723 - - 7,536,917 7,735,723
Cultural and recreation 1,142,379 1,293,315 - - 1,142,379 1,293,315
Education 13,307,102 14,425,668 - - 13,307,102 14,425,668
Interest on long-term debt 1,881,412 1,734,413 - - 1,881,412 1,734,413
Solid Waste - - 4,081,333 3,913,589 4,081,333 3,913,589

Total expenses 46,972,043 49,479,832 4,081,333 3,913,589 51,053,376 53,393,421
Increase (decrease) in net position before 7,433,821 7,026,859 401,013 891,926 7,834,834 7,018,785
transfers and special items
Transfers 40,392 - (40,392) - - -
Increase (decrease) in net position after 7,474,213 7,026,859 360,621 891,926 7,834,834 7,018,785
transfer and special items
Net position, beginning, previously reported 111,807,321 119,722,391 8,734,589 9,135,799 120,541,910 128,858,190
Restatement 440,857 (492,422) 40,589 - 481,446 (492,422)
Net position, beginning, restated 112,248,178 119,229,969 8,775,178 9,135,799 121,023,356 128,365,768
Net position, ending $119,722,391  $126,256,828 $9,135,799 $10,027,725 $128,858,190  $136,284,553

29



111516 BCC Meeting
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Governmental activities: Governmental activities increased the County’s net position by $7,026,859 before prior year
adjustments, thereby accounting for 88.74% of the total growth in the net position of Watauga County. Key elements of this
increase are as follows:

e Sales tax increases due to the improved economic factors, particularly in the tourism industry resulted in revenues above
projection;

e Continued high property tax collections at a rate of 98.81% for FY 15-16, an increase of 44 basis points over last year;

e Close monitoring of expenditures throughout the year with actual expenditures well below budget.

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased Watauga County’s net position by $891,926 (11.26%). Key
elements of this increase are as follows:

e Revenues in excess of projections for sale of recycled materials due to anticipated volume reductions not materializing;

e Revenues for solid waste fees were above projections due to higher tax collection rates;

e Contracted increases in the waste hauling contract were below projected increase along with continued fuel escalator
credits in excess of anticipated amounts.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

Watauga County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal and accounting
requirements.

Governmental Funds — The focus of Watauga County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County’'s financing requirements.
Specifically, fund balance available for appropriation can be a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance of
the General Fund increased to $21,607,950 while total fund balance increased to $26,408,144. As a measure of the General
Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.
Unassigned fund balance represents 45.79 percent of total General Fund expenditures ($47,189,556), while total fund balance
represents 55.96 percent of that same amount.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights - During the fiscal year, the County revised the budget on several occasions. Generally,
budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the
original budget ordinance once more exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from
external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain
services. Total amendments to the General Fund increased revenues, transfers and expenditures by $4,472,492 with
approximately $1.44 million of the amendments related to funds set aside for future capital needs of the County, $466,774 for
school lottery projects, and approximately $660,000 for additional projects and grant funding received. The actual operating
revenues for the General Fund were $1,975,005 more than the budgeted amount. Actual operating expenses were less than
budgeted by $3,611,260. Unfinished projects which are budgeted but not completed account for $1,940,979 (53.75%) of the total
amount under budget for expenditures.

Proprietary Funds - Watauga County's proprietary fund is used to provide information on the solid waste enterprise. Unrestricted
net position of the Solid Waste Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $5,434,408. The total increase in proprietary net
position was $891,926. Anticipated rate per ton and fuel escalator increases in the waste hauling contract tied to the national CPI
were not realized with the continued recession recovery creating savings.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets: Watauga County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June 30,
2016, totals $142,160,191 (net of depreciation). These assets include buildings, land, machinery and equipment, park facilities,
and vehicles. Major capital asset transactions during the year include:

e Purchased new vehicles and equipment for County governmental departments;

8

30



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

111516 BCC Meeting

e Continued work on the new ambulance base site and the greenway/underpass at Brookshire Park and Hwy 421;
e Completion of a new building for household hazardous waste collection.

Watauga County's Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

Figure 4
Governmental Business

Activities Activities Total

2016 2016 2016
Land $ 44,213,150 $ 975,497 $ 45,188,647
Buildings 81,703,572 3,036,287 84,739,859
Other improvements 3,254,625 144,778 3,399,403
Leasehold improvements 5,428,270 6,795 5,435,065
Equipment 1,144,183 273,713 1,417,896
Vehicles 710,772 156,247 867,019
Construction in progress 1,096,702 - 1,096,702
Intangible assets 15,600 - 15,600
Total $ 137,566,874 $ 4,593,317 $ 142,160,191

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in note 3 of the Basic Financial Statements.

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2016, Watauga County had no bonded debt outstanding or authorized.

Watauga County's Outstanding Debt

Figure 5

Governmental Activities

2016
$ 43,156,110

Installment purchase

2015
$ 47,273,471

Watauga County's total debt decreased by $4,117,361 or (8.71%) during the past fiscal year due to scheduled debt service
payments. No new debt was issued. The State of North Carolina limits the amount of debt that a unit of government can issue to 8
percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's boundaries less outstanding debt
principal. The legal debt margin for Watauga County as of June 30, 2016 is $672,414,671. Additional information regarding
Watauga County's long-term debt can be found in Note 3.B.7.b of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’'s Budgets and Rates

The following key economic factors reflect the fiscal environment the County is working in:

The County continues to experience growth in tourism and has seen continued revenue increases

for more than seven years related to tourism;

The County’s unemployment rate of 4.5% as of July 2016 is slightly lower than the state average of
4.6% and the federal rate of 4.9% and is consistent with the trends seen before the economic

recession;

Appalachian State University provides continued stability to the local economy as a major employer
and source of overall positive economic impact from the student population;
Construction and real estate sales have continued to show increases, consistent with state and

national trends.

31



111516 BCC Meeting
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

Governmental activities — The County’s property tax rate is maintained at 31.3 cents per $100 in property valuation for the
eleventh year in a row. Tax revenues are expected to remain level with minor growth for new construction. Sales tax revenue is
projected with a 3 percent increase based on state projections and more history with the ad valorem method of distribution. Other
revenues are expected to maintain current levels with minor increases.

Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund include increased school current expense and capital funding of just over $409,000,
department budgets with minor increases predominately due to personnel salary and benefit increases. Capital purchases are
allocated mainly for vehicle replacements with other projects still limited to primarily repairs and maintenance. A major project to
replace the roof and HVAC units at the West Annex is planned at $234,000. Completion during Fiscal Year 16-17 is expected on
the new ambulance base in the western part of the County and the Brookshire/Hwy 421 underpass greenway project. Funds are
allocated to be set aside again this year for future capital school projects of $400,000 (a $25,000 increase over FY 15-16) and
$500,000 for county projects.

Businesses-type activities — Budgeted revenues for solid waste fees are projected at current year amounts with property
owners continuing to receive 2,000 pounds of free disposal at the transfer station. Budgeted expenditures include funding for an
increase in waste hauling expenses due to potential contracted increases in April 2017. Funds have also been budgeted for
capital replacements of a snowplow, pickup truck, tire trailer, recycling containers, road tractor, and a trash truck estimated at
$381,250.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the County’'s finances for those with an interest in this area. Questions
concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the Watauga
County Finance Director, 814 West King Street, Suite 216, Boone, NC 28607. The report can also be found on our website
www.wataugacounty.org/main/App Pages/Dept/Finance/countyAudits.aspx.

10

32


http://www.wataugacounty.org/main/App_Pages/Dept/Finance/countyAudits.aspx

111516 BCC Meeting

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33



111516 BCC Meeting

Exhibit A
Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016
Primary Government Component Units
Watauga County

District U Tourism

Governmental Business-type Development
Activities Activities Total AppalCART Authority
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33,583,709 $ 5,297,107 $ 38,880,816 2,231,237 $ 1,491,637
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 815,078 - 815,078 - -
Receivables (net) 1,404,657 456,377 1,861,034 8,514 -
Due from other governments 3,041,172 37,550 3,078,722 169,387 334,400
Inventory - - - 151,043 -
Net pension asset - ROD 152,800 - 152,800 - -
Intangible asset for advanced funding of OPEB NOO 535,617 71,398 607,015 - -
Capital assets:
Land, intangible, and construction in progress 45,325,452 975,497 46,300,949 1,213,392 -
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 92,241,422 3,617,820 95,859,242 10,029,158 -
Total capital assets 137,566,874 4,593,317 142,160,191 11,242,550 -
Total assets 177,099,907 10,455,749 187,555,656 13,802,731 1,826,037
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals-LEOSSA 17,055 - 17,055 - -
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal
year-LEOSSA 7,663 - 7,663 - -
Pension deferrals-LGERS and ROD 16,228 481 16,709 - -
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal
year-LGERS and ROD 677,811 59,808 737,619 - 10,241
Total deferred outflows of resources 718,757 60,289 779,046 - 10,241
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,280,042 282,485 1,562,527 169,924 3,674
Accrued interest payable 162,452 - 162,452 - -
Due to other governments 346,155 - 346,155 - -
Liabilities payable from restricted assets 45,953 - 45,953 - -
Unamortized liability for bond premiums 3,902,873 - 3,902,873 - -
Long-term liabilities:
Net pension liability - LGERS 717,269 63,814 781,083 - 12,880
Net pension liability - LEOSSA 517,233 - 517,233 - -
Debt service due within one year 4,082,361 - 4,082,361 - -
Due in more than one year 40,113,296 108,846 40,222,142 - 7,458
Total liabilities 51,167,634 455,145 51,622,779 169,924 24,012
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals 379,946 33,168 413,114 - 17,613
Prepaid taxes and fees 14,256 - 14,256 - -
Total deferred inflows of resources 394,202 33,168 427,370 - 17,613
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 94,926,875 4,593,317 99,520,192 11,242,550 -
Restricted for:
Stabilization by State Statute 4,542,332 - 4,542,332 - 334,400
Public safety 336,694 - 336,694 - -
Register of Deeds 78,847 - 78,847 - -
Revaluation 179,015 - 179,015 - -
Tourism promotion - - - - 1,460,253
Unrestricted (deficit) 26,193,065 5,434,408 31,627,473 2,390,257 -
Total net position $ 126,256,828 $ 10,027,725 $ 136,284,553 13,632,807 $ 1,794,653

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

11

34



111516 BCC Meeting
Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Program Revenues

Operating Grants Capital Grants
Charges for and and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 10,139,596 $ 848,431 $ 335,758 $ 60,000
Public safety 12,944,370 661,585 686,059 -
Transportation 209,838 - 142,343 -
Economic and physical development 664,986 - - -
Environmental protection 331,923 - 27,159 14,081
Human services 7,735,723 74,858 4,502,891 -
Cultural and recreational 1,293,315 306,302 - 453,554
Education 14,425,668 - 575 559,677
Interest on long-term debt 1,734,413 - - -
Total governmental activities 49,479,832 1,891,176 5,694,785 1,087,312
Business-type activities:
Solid waste 3,913,589 4,628,031 153,795 -
Total $ 53,393,421 $ 6,519,207 $ 5,848,580 $ 1,087,312
Component units:
AppalCART $ 4,179,067 $ 2,396,963 $ 2,002,783 $ 201,897
Watauga County District U Tourism
Development Authority $ 1,132,874 $ - % 240,203 $ -

General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purpose
Local option sales tax
Other taxes and licenses
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Investment earnings, unrestricted
Miscellaneous, unrestricted
Total general revenues, special items, and transfers
Change in net position
Net position, beginning previously reported
Restatement
Net position, beginning, restated
Net position, ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

12 35



Exhibit B
Net (Expense) Revenues and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government Component Units
Watauga County
District U
Governmental Business-type Tourism Development
Activities Activities Total AppalCART Authority
(8,895,407) $ - 8 (8,895,407) $
(11,596,726) - (11,596,726)
(67,495) - (67,495)
(664,986) - (664,986)
(290,683) - (290,683)
(3,157,974) - (3,157,974)
(533,459) - (533,459)
(13,865,416) - (13,865,416)
(1,734,413) - (1,734,413)
(40,806,559) - (40,806,559)
- 868,237 868,237
(40,806,559) 868,237 (39,938,322)
422,576

(892,671)

30,972,900 - 30,972,900 - -

11,166,662 - 11,166,662 - -

2,279,156 - 2,279,156 - 1,347,531

3,278,098 - 3,278,098 - -

114,946 15,785 130,731 2,237 2,320

21,656 7,904 29,560 2,287 -

47,833,418 23,689 47,857,107 4,524 1,349,851

7,026,859 891,926 7,918,785 427,100 457,180

119,722,391 9,135,799 128,858,190 13,205,707 1,337,473

(492,422) - (492,422) - _

119,229,969 9,135,799 128,365,768 13,205,707 1,337,473

126,256,828 $ 10,027,725 $ 136,284,553 $ 13,632,807 1,794,653

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

13

111516 BCC Meeting

36



111516 BCC Meeting

Exhibit C
Watauga County, North Carolina
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2016
Capital Other Total
Projects Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 24,403,576 $ 9,180,133 $ - % 33,583,709
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 257,862 - 557,216 815,078
Taxes receivable, net 766,466 - 222,836 989,302
Due from other governments 3,000,782 - 40,390 3,041,172
Accounts receivable, net 58,774 - - 58,774
Total assets $ 28,487,460 $ 9,180,133 $ 820,442 $ 38,488,035
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,280,042 $ - % - $ 1,280,042
Due to other governments 21,110 - 325,045 346,155
Liabilities to be paid from restricted assets - - 45,953 45,953
Total liabilities 1,301,152 - 370,998 1,672,150
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Taxes receivable 766,466 - 110,192 876,658
Prepaid taxes 11,698 - 2,558 14,256
Total deferred inflows of resources 778,164 - 112,750 890,914
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Stabilization for State Statute 4,542,332 - - 4,542,332
Public safety - - 336,694 336,694
Register of Deeds 78,847 - - 78,847
Revaluation 179,015 - - 179,015
Committed for:
Capital projects - 9,180,133 - 9,180,133
Unassigned 21,607,950 - - 21,607,950
Total fund balances 26,408,144 9,180,133 336,694 35,924,971
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and
fund balances $ 28,487,460 $ 9,180,133 $ 820,442 $ 38,488,035
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A) are different because:
Total Fund Balance, Governmental Funds 35,924,971
The intangible assets resulting from advance contributions to the OPEB NOO in excess of the annual
required contribution are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 535,617
Net pension asset - ROD 152,800
Contributions to pension plans in the current fiscal year are deferred outflows of resources on the
Statement of Net Position. 677,811
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported
in the funds. 137,566,874
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and therefore are
unavailable in the funds. 356,581
Deferred inflows of resources for taxes receivable 876,658
Pension related deferrals-all plans (339,000)
Net pension liability - LGERS (717,269)
Net pension liability - LEOSSA (517,233)

Some liabilities, including debt related payables and other postemployment benefits, are not due and

payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

14

(48,260,982)

126,256,828

37



REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmental
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Investment earnings
Donations
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Economic and physical development
Environmental protection
Human services
Cultural and recreational
Education
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balance

Fund balances, beginning of year

111516 BCC Meeting

Exhibit D-1
Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
Capital Other Total
General Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
28,151,345 $ - 2,987,818 31,139,163
12,026,733 - 1,419,085 13,445,818
3,278,098 - - 3,278,098
6,015,642 - 438,452 6,454,094
762,959 - - 762,959
1,042,046 - - 1,042,046
89,212 25,734 1,063 116,009
103,366 - - 103,366
309,745 - - 309,745
51,779,146 25,734 4,846,418 56,651,298
7,000,537 - 1,371,244 8,371,781
9,652,076 - 3,513,077 13,165,153
209,838 - - 209,838
508,661 - 137,873 646,534
353,323 - - 353,323
7,425,331 - - 7,425,331
1,443,902 - - 1,443,902
14,425,668 - - 14,425,668
- - 27,937 27,937
4,117,361 - - 4,117,361
2,052,859 - - 2,052,859
47,189,556 - 5,050,131 52,239,687
4,589,590 25,734 (203,713) 4,411,611
52,013 - - 52,013
4,100 2,268,552 - 2,272,652
(2,268,552) - (4,100) (2,272,652)
(2,212,439) 2,268,552 (4,100) 52,013
2,377,151 2,294,286 (207,813) 4,463,624
24,030,993 6,885,847 544,507 31,461,347
26,408,144 $ 9,180,133 336,694 $ 35,924,971

Fund balances, end of year

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

15

38










































































































































































































































































































































































mailto:C3@356%20Urgent%20Care%20Funding















































































111516 BCC Meeting

185



111516 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

186



111516 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 9:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

C. Property Donation

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

The County Manager was contacted by Richard Promin, who wishes to donate property which he
owns to the County. He is the owner of a one acre lot located in Saddle Hill (221 Blowing Rock)
area. The tax value is $52,000 on the lot. Taxes are current. Staff is unaware of any liens on the
property or any property owner’s association dues. Mr. Promin has spoken with the Blueridge
Parkway and they indicated there were no funds available to pay for the necessary requirements
to accept the donation. Staff contacted the Blue Ridge Conservancy who had no interest in the

property.

Board direction was given to staff to further research the right-of-way issue with the property
owner. After further discussion the attached letter was provided by the property owner. It would
appear that the property owner wants the County to pay for the survey or just list the property
with a disclaimer that there is no right-of-way.

Direction from the Board is requested to accept the donation of the lot or decline the offer.

187



111516 BCC Meeting

Richard E. Promin, M.D.
2210 Southeast Laurel Run Drive
Ocala, Florida 34471-8394

Re. Parcel/Account: 2808-00-5791-000
Registration ID: 2634-9575-33TJ -
Property Description: Adj Saddle Hills AR

October 28, 2016

Deron Geouque, \
Wautauga County Manager A \

842 W. King Street, Ste 21 \‘\ '

Boone, NC 28607-3485
Dear Mr. Geouque, o

[ am replying to your telephone message which I received several days ago.

[ believe that the County Commission, when presented with my letter dated
September 29, 2016, requested clarification regarding access to the above-

referenced parcel of land and the right-of-way access.

Although I have a copy of a “Deed For Road Right-of Way” (enclosed), I have
been told that there is an inaccuracy in the original survey made by James M.
Barker. Mr. Barker’s survey may infringe upon the National Park’s border by
several feet in one area of the incoming road access. Another survey would be
necessary in order to confirm the validity of the path of the road access.

This would be very costly, and I do not wish to assume this cost.

Under these circumstances, should Wautauga County decide to accept this
land, and, subsequently, advertise it for sale by auction, it would need to state
that this property was without road access.

Please advise me of the County’s decision.

Very truly yours,

Richard E. Promin, M.D.

188



PREPARED BY:
FINGER, WATSON,
01 SANTI & McGEE

ATTORNEYS

P. 0. BOX 193

BOONE, N. C. 28607

PHONE: 264-6126

111516 BCC Meeting

NORTH CAROLINA

WATAUGA COUNTY RI"HT-OF-WAY DEED

THIS CONVEYANCE, made this the¢23@4;day of July, 1983, by

“RICHARD E. PROMIN and wife, JOAN G. PROMIN, hereinafter referred

to as GRANTORS; and JOHN W. MERTING, hereinafter referred to as
GRANTEE;
WITNEGSSETH :

THAT WHEREAS the Grantee is the owner of a certain tract of
land in Blowing Rock Township, Watauga County, North Carolina,
and desire access to said tract; and whereas the Grantors herein
are owners of such a right-of-way; and

WHEREAS, Grantors have agreed to convey to the Grantee a
right-of-way as set out below.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the sum of ONE

__DOLLAR—4$1.00) and other good and valuable consideration, the

receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Grantors do hereby
grant and convey unto the Grantee, his heirs, successors and
assigns, a right-of-way across the road as it presently exists,

the center of said right-of-way being particularly described as

follows:

BEGINNING on a point in the center of an existing road in the '

line of Saddle Hills Subdivision and the Moses Cone Park line
(located North 40° 49' West, 107.83 feet from a monument
found, also South 40° 49' East, 10.00 feet from an iron
found); thence from the beginning and with the center of said
road thru Moses Cone Park as follows: North 45° 34' East,
18.13 feet; South 84° 36' East, 26.96 feet; South 63° 34'
East, 29.08 feet; South 38° 02' East, 16.70 feet, South 31°
04' East, 59.16 feet; South 24° 04' East, 31.28 feet; South
06° 14' West, 33.25 feet to a point in the Cone Park and
James Barker line; thence continuing thru the Barker property
as follows: South 35° 39' West, 38.03 feet; South 52° 11"
West, 55.11 feet; South 63° 44' West, 109.49 feet; South 46°
57' West, 38.71 feet; South 33° 48' West, 37.79 feet; South
54° 11' West, 143.45 feet; South 31° 26' West, 20.71 feet;
South 11° 43' West, 49.36 feet; South 16° 11' East, 111.33
feet; South 09° 28' East, 40.89 feet; South 33° 19' East,
56.68 feet; South 15° 57' East, 20.00 feet; South 07° 02'
East, 56.29 feet to a point (located South 88° 0l1' West,
30.44 feet from a found 4x4 post); thence continuing thru
Barker property South 09° 13' East, 58.73. feet; South 09° 50°'
East, 81.32 feet; South 28° 35' East, 94.21 feet; South 29°
21' East, 87.51 feet; South 25° 54' East, 46.69 feet; South
33° 58' East, 61.00 feet to a point in the intersection of
two roads; thence continuing with the *center of a road South
71° 45' West, 70.33 feet to a calculated point in John

189



111516 BCC Meeting

apple tree on John Merting property) as surveyed and shown on
plat no. dated » by Hencle J.
Matheson RLS No. L-2561.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said right-of-way and easement unto the
said Grantees and their heirs, successors and assigns.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Grantors have hereunto set their

hands and seals the day and year first above written.

I Ny VA A (SEAL)

Richard E. Promin

D s

5 - (SEAL)
Joan‘G. Promin

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF K’fY'\) Qi v

I,.iﬁJLQVng f<, Oﬁqkyy}ﬁlé;, Notary Public, do hereby

certify that Richard E. Prom n and wife, Joan G. Promin per-
sonally appeared before me and acknowledged the due execution of

the foregoing Right-of-Way Deed for the purposes therein

expressed.

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this Qi“'& day of July,
1983.
A (sEAL)

My commission expires:
MOTARY PUSLIC STATE CF (LORIDA AT (2K

BONDED YHit! GENFRA! (NS UNDERWRITER-

190



PREPARED BY:
FINGER, WATSON,
Di SANTI & McGEE
ATTORNEYS
P. 0. BOX 193
BOONE, N. C. 28607

PHONE: 264-6126

111516 BCC Meeting

NORTH CAROLINA

WATAUGA COUNTY DEED FOR ROAD
RIGHT OF WAY

This Deed made this _ day of December, 1981, by and
between James W. Barker and wife, Jean M. Barker; Earl Waldin
and wife, Geneva Waldin; Robert Berge and wife, Abelene Berge;
Richard E. Promin and wife, Joan Promin; Wallace Montgomery and
wife, Clare Montgomery; Peter Stokley and wife, Marion Stokley,

hereinafter referred to as Grantors; and Rufus E. Hallmark and

Ann V. Hallmark, hereinafter referred to as Grantees.
; WITNESSETH

That the said Grantors for and in consideration of the sum
of $10.00 to them paid by Grantees, the receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, have bargained and sold, and by these presents do
grant, bargain, sell, and convey unto said Grantees, their heirs,
successors, and assigns, a perpetual easement for a 30 foot ease-
ment running from the end of the existing dedicated street through
Saddle Hi1ls Subdivision, through the Cone Park property and the
properties of the Grantors to the property of the Grantees as
more particularly described onigigﬁginﬁiﬁaeof by H.J. Matheson,
Rl S being map #81095 and dated August 13, 1981. _:r ndédad
— pla “-‘—"‘Jh racordaed wTith derd.mwikkxX

To have and to hold the aforesaid easement for road right-
of-way and all privileges thereunto belonging to the said Grantees,
their heirs and assigns, to their use and behoof forever; the

said Grantors reserving for themselves, their heirs, and assigns

the right to enter upon and use said road jointly with Grantees.

Q "ﬂﬂv\y‘)\) B/\“L'Cfr—/

C:;%wcg W. Barker
Do Y order””

uéan M. Barker

4 ///zzz;é%«

Ear1l Waldin

&WC\- éL/ 2 é‘a(e/,\ ‘

Geneva Waldin

191




111516 BCC Meeting

Robert Berge

Abelene Berge

o ' Richard E. Promin

Joan Promin

) @ LPeep Aﬁﬁféﬁx«zgjexuv,
Wallace Montgomery / ///

D0 ane_ ;khulwﬁjzafrhjmﬂ
Clare Montgomery g

Peter Stokley

Marion Stokley

STATE OF T owmroma
2N XAz COUNTY -

I, WL Efons rac oo &4y 1[,»/@ Notary Public, do hereby
certify that James W. Barker and gﬁfe, Jean M. Barker, personally
appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of
the foregoing Deed for Road Right of Way for the purposes therein
stated.

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this s o day of

/':cfﬁ s 1984
1 5Pz

J. 2L JCK/M)/C’\»; / (SEAL)
Notary Public //

My commission expires:
Notary Public, Stalz ¢f oo o

— My Bommission o
STATE OF FLORIDA =
DADE COUNTY
I, Duane Madeira . a Notary Public, do hereby

certify that Earl Waldin and wife, Geneva Waldin, personally
appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of
the foregoing Deed for Road Right of Way for the purposes therein
stated.
Witness my hand and notarial seal, this éi}%?day of
1/ , 1981.

J /
/fM@w (SEAL)

ééﬁary Public

My commission expires: ?%Zi//éz_LN 192




111516 BCC Meeting

STATE OF

COUNTY

Ths , a Notary Public, do hereby
certify that Robert Berge and wife, Abelene Berge, personally
appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of
the foregoing Deed for Road Right of Way for the purposes therein
stated.

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this day of
s 1981,
(SEAL)
Notary Public
My commission expires:
STATE OF
COUNTY .
I , a Notary Public, do hereby

certify that Richard E. Promin and wife, Joan Promin, personally
appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of
the foregoing Deed for Road Right of Way for the purposes therein
stated.

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this day of
, 1981.
(SEAL)
Notary Public
My commission expires:
STATE OF
COUNTY
I, Corry V. cwmrns 4 ™ , a Notary Public, do hereby

certify that w411ace Montgomery and wife, Clare Montgomery, per-
sonally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due
execution of the foregoing Deed for Road Right of Way for the
purposes therein stated.

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this __g_ day of

XBQ’_\EQ’_\ 5 , 198%,

(SEAL)

. ary
gy mme@msmpqpqmaMMQ.

193




111516 BCC Meeting

STATE OF

COUNTY

. {8 , a Notary Public, do hereby

Eértify that Peter Stokley and wife, Marion Stokley, personally
appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution
of the foregoing Deed for Road Right of Way for the purposes
therein stated.
Witness my hand and notarial seal, this __ day of
, 1981,

(SEAL)

Notary Public
My commission expires:

194




111516 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 9:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

D. December Meeting Schedule
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:
Due to North Carolina General Statues, the County Board of Commissioners is required to meet
the first Monday in December following each general election. Therefore, the Board will need to

reschedule the December 6, 2016, meeting to Monday, December 5, 2016 at 8:30 A.M.

Staff would recommend the Board reschedule the December 6, 2016, meeting to Monday,
December 5, 2016, at 8:30 A.M.

Board direction is requested.

195





















111516 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 10:

PuBLIC COMMENT

AGENDA ITEM 11:

BREAK

AGENDA ITEM 12:

CLOSED SESSION
Attorney/Client Matters — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3)

202



	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice

	Approval of Minutes 
	Approval of the November 15, 2016, Agenda
	Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on Proposed Road Names
	Presentation of Fiscal Year 2016 Audit
	Request to Modify Custodial Services Contract
	Tax Matters
	A.  Monthly Collections Report

	B.  Refunds and Releases

	C.  Property Tax Appeal


	Finance Matters
	A.  Proposed JCPC Budget Amendment

	B.  
Vaya Health Quarterly Report 
	C.  Proposed Inmate Catastrophic Insurance Contract


	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters

	A.  Proposed Forest Service Lease

	B.  Out-of-State Travel Request - Parks and Recreation

	C.  Property Donation

	D.  December Meeting Schedule

	E.  Proposed Amendment to the County's Holiday Schedule

	F.  Announcements


	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session



